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="
D Barn D Shed D Garage @_} Other landscape featvres or buildings i Specity)
. Large c. 1900 mill to south
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In a small mill village. The mill is located on the French River.
(OVER)




PHOTOGRAPHER CATE
© | Mark McDonough 1986
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20 SUBSEQUENT FIELD EVALUATION".

17 OTHER NOTABLE FEATURES OF BUILDING OR SITE (interior und/ or extertor)
Complex in several parts. Gabled stone and stucco mill (39' x 55') just to south of mill
dam, with gable roof oriented east-west. Early 20th century reinforced-concrete turbine
E pit located just to south.
£ To south of wheel pit, 40' x 31' 1948 concrete block and wood frame power house, one
é story with flat roof, deteriorated. To south of this, two fieldstone masonry ruins. First
. is one story, 49' x 33', roofless (marks on adjacent wall indicate original gable roof).
o) ; : ;
= Second is two story, 66' x 33', also roofless, with large tapered brick stack at northeast
; interior corner. Both stone ruins have large projecting stones at expcsed corners, massive
U stone sills and lintels.
)
e To rear (west) is 66" x 90' two story frame building adjoining two story 100' x 34' re-
inforced concrete building with large industrial steel sash window arrays.
TS ARCH TECT BUILDER
19 RISTORICAL OR ARCHITECTURAL IMPORTANCE
This waterpower site was first developed in the late 18th century when Elijah Child and
Josiah Perry set up grist, saw, and dye mills (the small village surrounding the mill site
was then known as Childs Mills). Elijah Converse purchased the site about 1796, and con-
w veyed it to his son Riel Converse, who operated grist and saw mills.
U ; ;
z In 1822, Converse sold Zirah Preston-land and a water privilege for a satinet (woolen)
L factory. In 1823, the satinet operation was purchased by Laban T. Wilson of Dudley,
s Massachusetts, who promptly leased Zirah Preston's mills (probably to obtain unrestricted
é use cof the available waterpower) and re-named the settlement Wilsonville. The name has
2 remained, but Wilson himself was never particularly successful. At the time of his death
c. 1847, the property included a satinet mill, five dwelling houses, a saw and shingle
mill, a grist mill, three barns, and a blacksmith shop.
Following Wilson's death, Wheeler Barrett of Plainfield and Solomon F. Tracy of New
Britain purchased the property with the help of mortgages from Rhode Island's Slater
family, who controlled extensive textile holdings in Dudley. Barrett and Tracy apparently
: Bayles, History of Windham County
E Thompson Land Records 8:804 (1822); 9:158 (1823); 9:197 (1824); 10:84 (1826);
g 18:506 (1847); 18:44 (1848); 21:130 (1859); 21:270 (1861); 22: 791 (1870); 29:133-35
9 (1885); 44:99-103 ~ (1929)
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made few changes; between 1859 and 1861, they sold a property described much as above
to Luther M. Capron, Jr. Capron died in 1866, leaving an estate subsequently purchased
by Oscar F. Chase, who sold the property to Lawrence Keegan in 1885.

The Keegan family continued to operate the business as a proprietorship until 1929, when

it was sold to Israel Putnam Mills. Until recently

it was operated, still as a woolen

mill, by Katsy and Ida Mae Simonds. At the moment the building stands idle, but new
owners are restoring the turbine pit and reportedly have expressed an interest in resuming

operations.

Historically, the Wilsonville woolen mills, long known as the Keegan Mills, are signifi-
cant as one of Thompson's oldest surviving textile complexes, with a history of nearly

continuous use stretching back more than 160 years.
portion of the complex probably dates to Laban Wilson'

At least some of the older stone
tenure in the 1820s! the large

reinforced concrete wing was built about 1920 by the Keegan family.

Architecturally, the Keegan mills are significant as a rare surviving example of early
industrial mill construction. The deteriorated state of the older buildings at the south
end of the complex makes some construction details difficult to interpret, but the stucco
and stone walls are typical of surviving southern New England mills of the 1820s and 1830s
The projecting stones at exposed corners are an unusual feature. The c. 1920 reinforced
concrete wing is typical of early 20th century multi-story mill construction.

The use of concrete and structural steel finally freed mill designers to create huge
industrial steel sash window arrays, admitting almost unlimited natural light to factory

interiors.







